Dedham School Building Rehabilitation Committee

Hosted at the Dedham Town Hall and via Zoom

SBRC Meeting Minutes — Approved
Monday January 22, 2024 - 6:30 PM

Members present:

(A= attended Meeting; P= attended partial meeting)

Voting Members:

Jonathan Levi Associates
(Designer):

Anthony Rodriguez, Ex Officio

A | John Tocci, Chair

Jonathan Levi

Kaitlyn DeStefano, Ex Officio (Via
Zoom)

A | Steve Bilafer, Vice Chair Philip Gray Shannan Kavanagh, Ex Officio
A | Josh Donati, Selectman Carol Harris Kerri Bryant, Ex Officio
A | John Heffernan, Finance Other:

Committee

A | Mayanne MacDonald Briggs,
School Committee

Matt Haffner, Director of
Facilities

Stephen Acosta, School
Committee

Kimberly Hermesch, Oakdale
School Principal

A | Phillip Gonzalez

Dr. Nan Murphy, Superintendent
of Schools (non-voting)

VERTEX: Owners Project
Manager (OPM)

Jennifer McGowan, Greenlodge
School Principal

Jon Lemieux, Project Director

A

Katherine Duceman

Stephen Theran, Sr. Project
Manager

A

Steven Popper, Ex Officio

Anissa Ellis, Project Manager

A

Sara Rosenthal, Ex Officio

Distribution: SRBC Members and other attendees

1. Old Business/Approval of Minutes:

Mr. Tocci opened the December 11, 2023, SBRC meeting at 6:32 pm.
Mr. Tocci asked for any old business. There is none.

Mr. Tocci stated there are two sets of minutes to approve tonight, from the December 4, 2023, meeting
and the December 11, 2023, meeting. He asked for any changes/comments, there are none.

MOTION: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs to approve the December 4, 2023, minutes.

SECOND: by Mr. Heffernan

Vote: Vote is unanimous. Motion passes 6-0-0;

MOTION: by Mr. Heffernan to approve the December 11, 2023, minutes.
SECOND: by Ms. MacDonald Briggs
Vote: Vote is unanimous. Motion passes 6-0-0;

2. 3. Recap and Discussion of Greenlodge-Oakdale Project status:

Mr. Tocci gave a brief recap of how we got to where we are today. He stated at the December 19, 2023,
meeting the SBRC voted to request the MSBA review and provide updated enrollment numbers for the
project. He stated the formal request has been submitted and he thanked Ms. Murphy for all her hard
work on getting all the paperwork submitted.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved




Ms. Murphy also gave a shout out to the town building department for putting together some
complicated formulas and information on a tight turnaround in order to meet the tight MSBA deadline.
She thanked the Town for their support.

3. Discussion on potential engagement with Town Meeting and Voters:

Mr. Tocci stated they are conceptually asking how the SBRC can further engage the public while we wait
for the MSBA to make a decision. The earliest they would make that decision is February 28 which gives
time to discuss future community engagement. He stated we have discussed having another community
meeting, or a session designed for town meeting members and he is looking for feedback from the
committee.

Mr. Donati stated there are two groups we want to get information from, one is town meeting members
and the other is Dedham residents. He stated there are two opportunities coming up, Town Election on
April 13 and Town Meeting in May. He also stated we need to figure out what we are asking and how to
get that information out so people are as informed as possible when we have these discussions. He
stated we need to know what options we are presenting and how make sure we get as much
information as possible to the voters and town meeting members ahead of time.

Mr. Tocci stated the MSBA is the driver of this by providing the new enrollments and dictating when we
receive that information. He stated the enrollment numbers are one thing, and how many classrooms
they will give us with each enrollment is another. We won’t know that information until we hear back
from them.

Mr. Donati clarified some of the discussions. He stated if we are talking about 15 section and about 18
students per classroom, so that’s a 270-student enrollment, so if the MSBA gives a 300 student
enrollment at 15 sections that’s more like 20 kids per class. However, if we have 20 sections that’s more
like 15 students per class. As a committee we have been talking about an even number of classrooms
per grade, so what does it mean if they only give us 15 sections for a stand along Oakdale?

Mr. Tocci stated that’s a good point, originally the MSBA approved an enrollment of 235 students for a
stand-alone Oakdale, 450 students for a combined Oakdale Riverdale, and 550 students for a combined
Oakdale Greenlodge. They also approved a stand-alone school for 15 classrooms which is under 17
students per class, which is a very small class. The Oakdale Riverdale was for 25 classrooms and the
Oakdale Greenlodge was for 30 classrooms which means about 18 students per classroom for those
options. This gives additional capacity for year to year fluctuations in enrollments. It’s the classrooms
that are really key and the more classrooms the better because Dedham has a history of smaller class
sizes. We have 18 students per class as a target. We are waiting for the MSBA to give new enrollments,
but also to give us the number of classrooms for the building. He also noted that even though the school
capacity might be 600 students based on number of classrooms, that doesn’t mean that school will have
that many students. That decision is up to the school department.

Mr. Levi stated it is sometimes helpful to look at things graphically, he presented a slide showing the
number of students in each classroom based on the possible enrollments provided by the MSBA.

He stated the Greenlodge Oakdale option with a 550-student enrollment is a 30-classroom school (5
classrooms per grade) which yields 18 students per classroom. He noted this enroliment and sectioning
was approved by the MSBA.

Ms. McGowan stated at Greenlodge her classroom size is currently about 20 students per room.

Mr. Donati noted the DESE website factors enrollments slightly differently and it’s more complicated.
Mr. Levi noted that you have special education classrooms that affect the numbers as well.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



Mr. Levi continued and stated the revised potential enrollment of 615 students, which is 65 more
students than we had originally, could either be a 30-classroom school, which is the same project we
had in the fall, but it bumps the classroom numbers from 18 to 20 students per class. An alternative
would be to increase the school size to have a 35-classroom school which yield a 17 student per
classroom school. We are unsure if the MSBA is comfortable with us building a school with only 17
students per classroom because the MSBA usually builds schools based on 23 students per classroom.

Mr. Levi noted the other option is the Oakdale only option. The current 235 student enrollment with 15
classrooms yields a 15 student per classroom school. If we increase the enrollment by the same 65
students but keep it as a 15-classroom school that gives us 20 students per classroom, however if we
change the building to a 20-classroom building it brings us back down to 15 students per classroom.
These are the potential options in front of us with the MSBA.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated she doesn’t want to discuss 15 students per classroom because as a
district it’s not what we have and it’s not what we can afford. In a lot of cases right now we have over 20
students per classroom.

Mr. Levi stated that even in the stand alone alternative there wouldn’t be a change from what we were
previously assuming, it would still be a 15-classroom school.

Mr. Donati stated if they gave us a 20-classroom school we wouldn’t say no, but would we be allowed
to put more students in that school?

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated that even when the students moved from the old Avery to the new Avery
there was a redistricting plan and she believes that would happen again even if we had a stand-alone
Oakdale school because we would be looking to adjust the overcrowding currently happening at the
Greenlodge school. She stated if we had 20 sections there would be opportunity to alleviate the
overcrowding.

Mr. Donati asked when we are allowed to put more than 300 students into the school?

Mr. Levi stated the MSBA doesn’t have a say.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated the Avery was over the given enrollment when it opened and so was the
ECEC.

Mr. Donati asked if we could put 350 students in the classroom on day one, he wants to know how strict
the MSBA is about school capacity.

Ms. Rosenthal stated she has worked on projects with enrollments that were over what the MSBA had
given. The enrollment drives the FF&E and Technology budget, so they will only reimburse based on the
given enrollment but you might be building to actual capacity. Right now, the most important thing is
the number of classrooms they will give you.

Mr. Theran stated you are building a building and it’s up the Town to decide how to fill it.

Mr. Tocci stated the MSBA has never came back to the Town to say you’re putting more kids in that
building than what we gave you. He asked if anyone is aware of any district getting a review by the
MSBA because they exceeded an MSBA enrollment number?

Mr. Theran stated no, they don’t do that.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated that we have time now for community engagement. She noted that
February 16" is the deadline for getting something into the town warrant for Town Meeting and we
have 30 days prior to the election to get something onto the ballot if we want do that as well. She also
stated that we need to get information out there, but we won’t know what information we have to put
out there until February. She stated maybe the communications subcommittee can work on what we

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



want to put on ballot and this is the easiest and least expensive way to get feedback from the whole
town.

Mr. Donati stated a lot of people asked why we haven’t done a Town mailer and he noted that it is not
in the committee budget and the project budget isn’t used for that type of thing. He noted that it is
convenient and makes a lot of sense to do a ballot question budget wise.

Mr. Gonzalez asked if we would need to provide a warrant article to request additional funds to extend
the feasibility stage.

Mr. Tocci stated he is unsure if we will be in a position to request a warrant article for the spring town
meeting.

Mr. Donati stated we can always do a placeholder if we aren’t sure of precise language or dollar
amounts at this time. We can reserve the space with Nancy Baker at town hall. He stated the
communications subcommittee can meet and provide something to hand in between now and then to
draft something.

Mr. Heffernan agrees with Mr. Donati and noted that if we are still not ready by Town Meeting we can
pull it back. He then asked if anyone is familiar with having a referendum question at Town Meeting?
Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated that has not happened in the past 20 years.

Mr. Bilafer noted we should talk to the moderator.

Mr. Heffernan stated the structure is that there is a warrant and then there are a number of articles that
are reviewed by the finance committee and they com out with a recommendation to Town Meeting. He
is unsure how the finance committee can make a recommendation to a referendum question that is
non-binding. He also noted for the Town vote you can have a non-binding referendum vote.

Mr. Donati stated he will take that on to figure out how it would work.

Mr. Heffernan agrees with Mr. Gonzalez stated about having a warrant article about providing more
funds.

Mr. Tocci agrees. He stated the delay of six months to a year is going to add millions of dollars
depending on how long the delay is, approximately 4%-5% per year. He stated until we know what the
MSBA comes back with, we won’t know how much work needs to be done. He noted the school
committee needs to decide on enrollment and if we change course we are talking about entirely new
designs, new votes, and it will be a more costly ask.

Mr. Bilafer stated in the two scenarios, if we were to continue where we left off, is our current allocation
adequate or do we need to add to it? He noted it’s hard to put a value to that and if we are going to get
a sense of what the Town wants to do at Town Meeting how do we also ask for money at that same
meeting when we don’t know which way we are proceeding.

Mr. Theran stated there are a couple of scenarios. He highly recommends getting feedback from Town
Meeting and by then we will have the scenarios figured out and we can bring the history to them and let
them know how we arrived to where we are and we can have figures for the two different scenarios.
We will either get to Town Meeting in the Fall or next Spring and at this spring meeting we will have
costs to get to one of those two scenarios.

Mr. Levi agrees with Mr. Theran.

Mr. Theran stated there are two questions, one is the funding, and one is the what do you want to do?
Mr. Bilafer stated we can’t do both at the same town meeting.

Mr. Theran stated if we don’t, we have to wait until Fall.

Mr. Bilafer stated this committee must come back and make decisions based on the consensus of town
meeting. He doesn’t see both votes happening in the same night.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



Mr. Donati stated the town mailing is cost prohibitive, but just sending mailers to town meeting
members is more doable. Once we have our information, we can send something to the town meeting
members to get feedback so we don’t have to wait for town meeting and we will know how we want to
proceed by Town Meeting and we can have a warrant article for a vote. He stated pausing the project
comes with a cost and we don’t want to potentially move forward with another project that doesn’t
have town wide support but also not wait too long to keep moving forward. He also questioned whether
we ask a question that is “either/or” or do we ask a “do you support or oppose” and give two options so
we aren’t pitting the options against each other but rather seeing how much support is behind the two
options.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated she thinks we need a town wide vote to collect the data we didn’t collect
the first time around. She also doesn’t want the entire town meeting vote to be about this project, and
she wants more than the 273 town meeting member opinions.

Mr. Donati stated another option is to collect the data anonymously from the town meeting members,
at the end we just want to know what option will pass town meeting.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated that no matter what the MSBA comes back with, the school committee
will want to revisit their role in this process.

Mr. Tocci stated that over the past year and half we had 50-60 meetings and he does have a problem
with taking an anonymous poll, but that’s minor. As a practical matter he stated this will end up being an
all-night event and in the spring the town meeting tends to be long already.

Mr. Levi asked if they had thought about getting an even split at town meeting and not overwhelming
support one way or the other.

Mr. Donati stated that’s why he suggested two separate questions. Say it comes back 60/40 that they
would support one option over the other, that doesn’t mean they won’t get 2/3 support for that option.
That’s why we need to know which option will garner the 2/3 support.

Mr. Heffernan stated he is receiving texts right now stating it is possible to do a referendum question at
town meeting. He also asked what information we want to get from town meeting and are we looking to
have enrollment decided before or after town meeting? That will affect the question asked at town
meeting.

Mr. Levi stated that it doesn’t really matter what the MSBA says for classrooms because the 15 students
per classroom option isn’t on the table for Dedham. So that leaves two options, the 615 combined
Oakdale/Greenlodge 30 classroom school or the 300 student standalone Oakdale with 15 classrooms.
Mr. Tocci asked if we can we engage with the MSBA and ask if they would approve a 20-classroom
school for an enrollment of 2807?

Mr. Levi stated we can ask, but reminded everyone that their measure is 23 students per classroom.

Mr. Tocci stated that when we were given the original enroliments, we assumed the Oakdale only was a
2-section school with 10 total classrooms.

Mr. Donati asked if the MSBA looks at the enrollment of the full town? Including Greenlodge and Avery,
the projected enrollment from NESDEQ, and if this new enrollment is based on the town wide
elementary projects. Potentially the new Oakdale only number is up to 270 for Oakdale, so 300 doesn’t
really solve anything other than having slightly more room at Oakdale. But maybe the MSBA would
consider the 20 classrooms understanding that we are over where we want to be at Avery and
Greenlodge. So, by giving Dedham 20 classrooms for an Oakdale only, it also helps overcrowding at the
other schools as well.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



Mr. Bilafer asked if we want to panel a subcommittee to get information on the dates and processes and
talk to the Town Manager, moderator, etc. to find out how to questions before town meeting and onto
the ballot. Whenever we start moving, we want to be able to move quickly so we don’t waste money or
time by not being prepared.

Mr. Tocci stated he likes the idea of more people being involved, he’s happy to entertain a motion to
appoint a subcommittee.

Ms. Macdonald Briggs stated we don’t need to vote to create a subcommittee.

Mr. Bilafer stated it will be a working group and he’s unsure how this process works for ballot questions
and how are the questions created? Who writes them, etc. He stated we need to talk to the moderator
and things need to be presented to town meeting very clearly.

Mr. Donati stated to add to the complexity do we stop the question at just this project? There’s a larger
finance question here, its easy to say lets do the cheaper building, but there is a whole other piece to
this puzzle. There are a lot of opinions about what we need to do with all the buildings. The cleanest
way is to just ask about this building, but someone will say “but what about the other finances”? It’s
complex to get all the information together, and all the information is about the whole picture. To make
a decision in a bubble isn’t realistic so the next logical question is when are we doing Riverdale, and then
Greenlodge? This working group can wrestle with that that looks like.

Mr. Theran stated that is part of the presentation made before the town meeting vote.

Mr. Heffernan stated we are the ones to write the warrant article, then they go through town counsel
who provides feedback about any other ways to restate the question. He asked if we can wait on raising
additional funds until the fall? He stated if we ask both a referendum question and a vote on
appropriated funds we will confuse people.

Mr. Theran stated if the single school is the most popular we have already completed the design of the
combined school. So, if we have to change the design, we don’t currently have fund to do that right
now.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated it would be disingenuous to ask for a town meeting opinion and then ask
for money at the same time. We need to do some kind of survey and then have that information back
far enough in advance so we know what we are talking about at town meeting if we want to ask for
more money for the feasibility study.

Mr. Theran stated feasibility will continue but it’s hard to complete a project design if there isn’t any
funding.

Mr. Donati asked about forming the working group.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs, Mr. Heffernan, and Mr. Bilafer volunteer to be on the working group.

Ms. Hermesch stated if they want school representation, she is willing to help.

Mr. Tocci stated that’s fine because they are not voting members.

Mr. Donati stated they can be invited to specific meetings to get their input as needed.

Mr. Levi stated he did a school once and the committee was able to request a discretionary to fund to
use as they needed, that may be an option here.

4. Capital Improvements on streets surrounding Oakdale:

Mr. Tocci stated he has engaged several times with Jim Flannagan to talk about the wholistic approach

of engaging the town engineer and DPW about improvements for the streets surrounding Oakdale. He

stated they already have a civil engineering plan in place to make sidewalk improvements from Oakdale

Square down Cedar Street all the way to Sprague Street. He stated they will be asking for Town Meeting
6

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



appropriations to execute that plan. He stated they would also have to appropriate funds form town
meeting to request improvements to the streets surrounding Oakdale including upgrading the granite
curbing on Madison Street, on Shiretown Street, and also Circuit Street. He felt that it is too early to do
that right now, especially since the project has been pushed back so they aren’t going to put it on the
spring ballot. He stated he wants to let the committee know the process, first requesting money for an
engineering plan and working with the other town departments, then money for the work.

Mr. Donati asked if we need to get town meeting money first before we create a plan. So, we tell them
all the streets noted that we want to review, and they will come up with money to then design the plan.
Mr. Tocci confirmed, the civil engineer would be hired by the town to conduct the evaluation and the
eventual plan. He asked for any questions. There are none.

5. New Business:
Mr. Tocci asked for any new business, there is none.

6. Public Comment:
Mr. Tocci asked for public comments starting with people in the room.

Ms. Campbell Hegarty stated she wants everyone to take a step back and wait for the new numbers
before we talk about getting to town meeting. She urged the committee not to make the same mistakes
as before, like sending short notifications for meetings. She asked, what about the residents and the
parents of the children being directly affected. She stated she doesn’t believe there will be a big battle
to do a single stand-alone school. She said we have the technology to get the word out and she
suggested having a town wide meeting at the high school and using the school emails to get all the
parents involved and explain what is going on with the project. She stated its great that you are talking
to town meeting members, but they represent their constituents so don’t forget about us. She stated
we need to also talk to parents of the ECEC students. She noted every SBRC meeting should be on the
PTO website and agendas should be posted somewhere. She knows the committee is trying not to make
the same mistakes, but she noted a lot of the parents still don’t know what is happening. She requested
the SBRC find the money to do a mailer or use the reverse phone system to get the word out. She
suggested holding multiple meetings in a week and then doing a survey. She said not to cut the parents
out of the process.

Mr. Volmes stated that all the investment of time and money so far, it wouldn’t be a such a bad idea to
do broader outreach to town residents. He stated preparing the outreach material, he thinks the
committee will have to work hard to boil down the question and it might clarify your own thinking in
doing so.

Ms. Ellis read an online comment from Ms. Homeier, she asked why do we need to have the same
number of classrooms per grade? Why not have an extra classroom to allow for the fluctuations from
year to year for each grade?

Mr. Tocci looked to the school department for an answer.

Ms. Hermesch stated that’s a great question and she stated they have fluctuations yearly at each grade
level and right now they alternate spaces based on the needs of each grade. The more classrooms we
have the more flexibility we have to move cohorts around and address those issues.

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



Mr. Tocci stated that from Dedham’s perspective, we want as many classrooms as the MSBA will give us
but the standard is to tell the MSBA the number of sections per grade. He asked if anyone has ever
heard of the MSBA approving half measures?

Mr. Theran stated he has never seen that.

Ms. Rosenthal stated she has only ever seen that in a middle school where you have grades 6-8 and so
grades 7 and 8 might have 5 classrooms they rotate between. But you would need to have an
educational purpose attached to each classroom.

Ms. Hermesch added that it’s also not ideal to have a grade level that is down or up a section. That
creates a bubble or a reverse bubble and then the educators are shifting between grade levels and it is
challenging and creates issues with continuity.

Ms. McGowan stated that Greenlodge is in that situation right now, she stated first grade has 4 sections
and 3 sections of grades 2-5. So, assuming enrollments don’t go down, that bubble will move to second
grade and the staff will need to adjust.

Ms. Hermesch stated that teachers are very skilled at their craft and they have teachers who have
taught at the same grade level for 20 years and that is their expertise and that’s what you want because
they have mastered that curriculum. She stated it’s challenging for teachers to switch grade levels, it
means teachers are buying new sets of materials, sending existing materials to a new teacher, and
refamiliarizing a whole new year of content. The teachers also build families within each grade level, so
reforming the teacher relationships is difficult.

Ms. Bryant stated that as someone who has taught 2™ grade for 20 years, you become an expert in your
subject area. She stated she doesn’t just teach math, she’s an expert in math, reading, science, social
studies, and the social emotional wellbeing of students. She is also an expert on the behaviors of a 2™
grader. So, if she were to move to a new grade it’s like starting a new job in everything all day long. She
also noted the money she spends on things for 2" grade, and she would need to buy all new books for
her classroom library because they are not appropriate for other grades.

Mr. Donati stated its not as simple as you teach 2" grade so you can teach 3™.

Ms. Bryant clarified and stated any teacher could teach any grade, they are all teachers with multiple
degrees and experience. She stated it is hard on the staff emotionally because they don’t know what to
expect after the bubble year? Do they stay at that grade or move grades again? They learn a whole new
group of staff members who already have a cohort and have been together for years. It’s hard to keep
changing that every year.

Mr. Levi asked it easier to adjust to these fluctuations in a larger school.

Ms. McGowan agreed and noted they discussed that at previous meetings. She noted there is more
flexibility with 6 classrooms to play around with vs only 2 or 3.

Mr. Tocci noted we have discussed that at numerous meetings and the flexibility with larger schools
absorbs the bubbles.

Ms. Rosenthal stated that at this time last year we were doing visioning sessions and she noted it’s
worth going back to the website and looking at those notes. She stated there were parents, educators,
architects, etc. and it would be good to remind people what was driving everything to begin with the
collaboration between classes. She noted the visioning is what drives the building.

Ms. Ellis read a comment from Mr. David Silver asking what are the reuse plans and when will they be
executed?

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



Mr. Tocci stated he doesn’t believe there is a plan in place yet.

7. Next Meeting Dates:

Mr. Gonzalez asked what the next meeting dates will be?

Mr. Tocci stated he thinks we should continue with an every other week schedule.

Ms. MacDonald Briggs stated we need to get the answers from the MSBA first.

Mr. Bilafer stated he thinks we will need to vote something before 2/12 if we want to get a warrant on
the ballot.

Mr. Tocci noted we won’t have a formal response from the MSBA on enrollments until they vote on
February 28.

**Discussion on dates**

Upcoming meetings:

February 12, 2024

February 26, 2024

March 11, 2024

Mr. Theran stated that on this Friday we will learn how quickly we will need to move through the MSBA
process for enrollments.

Mr. Bilafer suggested moving the working group meetings to the opposite weeks.

Discussion on working group schedule: Decision to keep the working group meeting on January 30 as
scheduled, then again on February 6 and every two weeks from there.

8. Adjournment:
Mr. Tocci requested a motion to adjourn.

MOTION: to adjourn by Ms. MacDonald Briggs
SECOND: by Mr. Donati

Vote to Adjourn - Unanimous

Meeting Adjourned at 8:00 pm.

Attachments:
JLA Classroom Count/Enrollment Matrix

SBRC Meeting Minutes — January 22, 2024 - Approved



